
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 2 October 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek

24 September 2019

1. Apologies for absence, if any 

1. Apologies for absence, if any 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman) 

5. Declaration of Interests: 
i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests;
ii. Other Interests.

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any 

7. First Quarter 2019/20 Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 

8. Corporate Plan 2019 - 2023 (Pages 9 - 36)

9. Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-2019 & MHCLG Guidance (Pages 37 - 
48)

10. Work Programme (Pages 49 - 60)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:-

i. Chairman’s items;
ii. Members’ items;
iii. Forward Plan.

11. Exclusion of the Press and Public 

Public Document Pack



12. First Quarter Finance, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/20 - Appendix D 
(Pages 61 - 62)
(Paragraph 7 - Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor A Hart (Chair) Councillor T Riley (Vice-Chair)
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Davies
Councillor E Fallows Councillor M Gledhill
Councillor N Hawkins Councillor T Holmes
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor A Hulme
Councillor K J Jackson Councillor J T Jones
Councillor L D Lea Councillor L A Malyon
Councillor I Plant Councillor P Routledge
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson
Councillor N Yates



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 24 JULY 2019
PRESENT: Councillor A Hart (Chair) 

Councillors G Bentley, E Fallows, M Gledhill, N Hawkins, T Holmes, 
B A Hughes, K J Jackson, I Plant, T Riley, P Routledge, D Shaw, 
L Swindlehurst and N Yates

IN ATTENDANCE:

1 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY

Councillor Bentley attended as substitute for Councillor Malyon. Councillor 
Swindlehurst attended as substitute for Councillor Atkins.

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

DECIDED – That the Minutes of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel held on 
12 June 2019 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

3 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN)

There were no urgent items.

4 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

During agenda item 8 (Business Rates Reliefs) Councillor Routledge declared an 
“other” interest, in that he worked for Morrisons Supermarket and his wife worked at 
JCB.

5 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY

Question to Councillor Wain from Councillor Yates:

Q. Can the arrangements for managing and enforcing parking restrictions 
in Biddulph be given in writing to Resources Scrutiny in order to consider 
their effectiveness and potential areas for improvements?

Response in Councillor Wain’s absence: 

Staffs County Council are the highways agency in this case and are responsible for 
on street parking enforcement in Biddulph. This will include taxi-ranks.  We are 
aware that Stoke on Trent City Council provide enforcement services to the Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 24 July 2019

2

highways authority, but SMDC have no control over this agreement, or are not aware 
of the content of this agreement. 

With regards to enforcement of off-street car parking, Stoke On Trent City Council 
provide SMDC with notice processing and enforcement services under an SLA from 
01 April 2015 until 31st March 2020. Under this agreement the allocated hours to 
Biddulph are 180 hours a year. As there is only one long stay pay and display car 
park in Biddulph (Wharf Road), this is deemed adequate.  We would not be aware of 
how many officers work in Biddulph at anyone period of time as their routines will 
involve providing enforcement service on the council’s other car parks in Leek and 
Cheadle also. If the car parks officers fall short of their hours in any one particular 
area by more than 10%, SMDC will be notified with the reason. SOTCC are required 
under the SLA to use their best endeavours to provide the hours as stated above. 

By way of a supplementary question, Councillor Yates asked whether the 
hours given to Biddulph could be randomised?

Andrew Stokes confirmed that this request would be fed back to the Internal Parking 
Board.

As a second supplementary question, Councillor Yates asked what the 
mechanism was for reporting offending ‘parkers’ to the relevant authorities, as 
photographic evidence was available?

In response, Andrew advised that enquiries would be made with Staffs County 
Council to establish how this should be done.

6 FOURTH QUARTER 2018/19 FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Councillor Ralphs was unable to attend due to illness, so Claire Hazeldene – 
Finance, Income & Procurement Manager – presented the report to members.

The report showed the Council’s position for the period ended 31 March 2019 and 
further detailed analysis was given in Appendix A (Finance), B (Procurement) and C 
(Performance). The position was summarised as follows:-

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General 

Fund provisional outturn for 2018/19 was 
an underspend of £777,487.

Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target for 2018/19 

was £830,000. There was a shortfall of 
£422,973 against target which had been 
offset in the year by the overall General 
Fund underspend without the need to use 
the Council’s earmarked efficiency 
programme reserve. The Efficiency 
Programme was reprofiled when setting 
the Budget & MTFP in February.

Appendix 
A

Page 4



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 24 July 2019

3

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 

2018/19 was set at £3.59 million as part of 
the MTFP presented in February 2019. The 
provisional outturn was £2.23 million which 
represented an underspend of £1.36 
million. Of this £0.77 million related to 
reprofiling of spend on vehicle and plant 
acquisitions and £0.34 million to an 
underspend against the provision for 
Disabled Facility Grants.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31 March 2019 

totalled £7.6 million. The Ascent loan and 
debenture stood at £19 million;

 Council borrowing at 31 March 2019 
totalled £11 million (related to the Ascent 
loan);

 The Council’s net interest receipts were 
£59,851 above budget.

Revenue Collection
 98.66% of Council Tax was collected by 31 

March 2019 (98% target exceeded), 
compared to 98.60% for the same period 
last year;

 99.13% of Business Rates was collected 
by 31 March 2019 (98.1% target exceeded) 
compared with 98.54% for the same period 
last year;

 At the end of Quarter Four debt that was 
over 60 days old was £70,434 which 
compared with £110,423 at 31 March 2018 
(5% reduction target exceeded).

Procurement The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:
 15 procurement activities were completed;
 The procurement forward plan included 61 

procurement activities for completion in 
2019/20 (either SMDC only or joint);

 At 31 March 2019, 64% of procurement 
activity undertaken was on the forward plan 
and the Council paid 92% of its invoices 
within 30 days during the year.

Appendix 
B

Performance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were;
 79% of the key performance indicators met 

target (performance had improved from last 
year in respect of 45% of the indicators);

 Of the 25 Priority Actions within the 
Corporate Plan, six were complete, two 
were still to commence, three were rated 
amber, one rated red the remainder being 
classified green;

 The Council received 98 complaints, 184 
comments and 82 compliments in the 

Appendix 
C

Page 5



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 24 July 2019

4

Fourth Quarter. Repeat complaints and 
response times both on track. 

Members raised queries / observations as follows (responses in brackets):-

 With the advent of the Climate Emergency Working Group there was likely to 
be a budget required for it. (It was important to flag this up in the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. The group could also generate some savings.)

 Under ‘Procurement Activity Completed’ – more detail required regarding 
payment to Adullam Homes Housing for the Single Persons Housing Project 
(Will email more information through.)

 With the Business Rates Pool bearing fruit, how long will it run for? (1 year 
minimum, but potential changes to the Business Rates Retention System 
mean that this was a volatile situation.)

 There hadn’t been a change in the amount paid to ‘Towns in bloom’ (Biddulph 
& Cheadle), was there an opportunity to increase? (This could be looked at.)

 Was there any move towards electrification of the fleet and solar panel 
installation? (This was discussed in a meeting with AES, with trials of electric 
vehicles ongoing elsewhere.)

DECIDED – 1. That the Panel NOTE the Fourth Quarter 2018/19 financial, 
procurement and performance position detailed in Appendices A, B 
and C and summarised in the report.

2. That the Panel RECOMMEND TO CABINET FOR APPROVAL:
 The allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue 

Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A, and
 The proposals to carry forward unspent capital budget as set out 

in Appendix A.

 

7 BUSINESS RATES RELIEFS

In response to discussion at the previous meeting of the Panel, Claire Hazeldene 
outlined details of Business Rate Reliefs granted by the Council in advance of a 
review of the policy later in the year.

The Moorlands had a high proportion of small businesses. The features of the local 
businesses make up were as follows:-

 There were 3,830 businesses in the Staffordshire Moorlands;
 92.3% employed less than 10 people compared to only 85% in Stoke-on-

Trent;
 Business start-up rates were low with net business growth of 0.4% 

compared to 3% in Stoke-on-Trent;
 But the business survival rate was high – 92.3% of businesses set up in 

2016 were still trading.

In contrast, the 10 highest Business Rates payers in the district paid 42.2% of the 
total Business Rates payable as shown below:-

Page 6



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 24 July 2019

5

Business Name Rateable 
Value

Percentage of 
Total Rates 
Collectable

Alton Towers Resort 8,380,000 20.45%
Aggregate Industries UK Ltd (Cauldon) 1,670,000 4.08%
JCB Compact Products Ltd 1,560,000 3.81%
Sainsburys Supermarkets Ltd (Leek) 1,310,000 3.21%
WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC (Leek) 1,150,000 2.81%
Sainsburys Supermarkets Ltd (Biddulph) 1,020,000 2.49%
Ornua Foods UK Ltd 760,000 1.85%
Tarmac Ltd (Cheadle) 525,000 1.28%
Western Mortgage Services Ltd (Britannia House) 467,500 1.14%
WM Morrison Supermarkets PLC (Cheadle) 445,000 1.09%
  42.20%

The Local Government Finance Act 1988 provided for 2 forms of relief:-
 Mandatory Relief – under Sections 43 and 45; and
 Discretionary Relief – under Sections 44, 47 and 49.

57% of businesses (1597) received Small Business Rate Relief.3

Member queries raised included (responses in brackets):-

 Any specific relief available for child care / nursery providers? (Only if eligible 
under the Small Business Rate Relief scheme.)

 Were discretionary decisions made with any member involvement? (No, this 
was a fully delegated process.)

 Was the figure of 42.2% paid by the top 10 businesses typical? (High Peak 
Borough Council have a similar situation. We speak to the Valuation Office 
Agency to try to get an accurate prediction on income with regard to re-
valuations, large value appeals etc. The situation was very volatile. Provision 
was made in the Financial Statements for variances.)

DECIDED – That the type and level of Business Rate Relief currently granted be 
NOTED.

8 WORK PROGRAMME

Following a number of suggestions at the last meeting of the Panel a number of 
items had been added to the Work Programme. These would be allocated to specific 
meetings in due course.

The meeting closed at 11.00 am

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel

2 October 2019

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Staffordshire Moorlands District Council - Summary of 
Corporate Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23
Appendix B – Corporate Plan – Priority Actions (September 2019)
Appendix C – Summary of Outcomes from Member Priority Setting Workshop 
(July 2019)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 It is essential for the Council to develop and agree a Corporate Plan. The plan 
will provide clear direction for the delivery of services in achieving the 
Council’s vision, aims and objectives in delivering positive outcomes for 
citizens

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Panel considers and comments on the summary of the Corporate 
Plan as detailed at Appendices A and B 

2.2 That, subject to any changes agreed, the panel requests that Cabinet:  

 Recommend that Council approves the Council’s vision, aims, objectives, 
influencing objectives and priorities;

 Approve a process of internal and external consultation as set out in the 
report; and

 Agree that the Panel considers and develops a new performance 
framework at its next meeting 

TITLE: Corporate Plan 2019-23

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes - Executive Director 
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARD: Non-Specific

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



3. Executive Summary

3.1 The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate 
objectives and established key priorities for the medium term i.e. in the case 
of the district council covering a period of up to four years (the life of a political 
administration). It in effect establishes the Council’s commitments in the 
delivery of services and community leadership to the citizens of the 
Staffordshire Moorlands.

3.2 A summary of the proposed Corporate Plan is attached at Appendix A. 

3.3 The plan sets out the Council’s vision, aims and objectives for the next for four 
years. It also identifies the outcomes which will be given the highest priority 
and the areas in which the Council will be seeking to influence partners to 
improve the quality of life for residents.

3.4 The achievement of the Council’s objectives will be supported by a number of 
priority actions to ensure step improvements and maximum impact upon the 
priority outcomes. The key actions committed in the Corporate Plan are 
detailed in Appendix B.

3.5 The new Corporate Plan will build on the existing plans and priorities and 
importantly will be steered by the political administration with the mandate 
provided in the recent local elections. However the Corporate Plan is a 
document that needs to be owned by the whole Council. As a consequence 
the Council held a members’ priority setting event the outcomes from which 
(detail attached at Appendix C) have been taken into account in the 
development of the new plan. 

3.6 Once the core of the Corporate Plan has been adopted, members will then be 
in a position to determine a set of local performance indicators and targets. It 
is suggested that this is undertaken by the Resources Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel at its November meeting. 

4 How this Report Links with Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Corporate Plan will establish the Council’s priorities 

5 Options

5.1 There are two options available to members in respect the approval of the 
Corporate Plan

 Approve the draft Corporate Plan and recommended Council adoption 
subject to input from the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel and 
Cabinet (Recommended) – This will ensure that positive outcomes can be 
delivered to citizens in line with priorities which are established around 
their needs and aspirations.

 Reject the draft Corporate Plan (Not Recommended)  

Page 10



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
Community Safety is one of the Council’s priority outcomes. Supporting 
the police in the prevention and detection of crime is one of the 
influencing priorities. 

6.2 Workforce
The Corporate Plan will provide the direction for the workforce by setting 
service objectives and priorities. These will inform the development of 
individual Service Plans which will form the basis of the employee 
appraisal scheme

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity 
and Equality Policies.

An initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
draft Corporate Plan. The aim of undertaking an EIA at this stage is to 
determine how the Plan aims to meet the needs of our diverse 
community, that it will provide an opportunity for the Council to fulfil its 
Equality Duty and that there are no unintended negative consequences. 
The Corporate Plan is ‘high level’ and strategic in nature and it is the 
detailed targets and subsequent resource allocation that will determine its 
effective implementation. The key finding or recommendation of this EIA 
is that we use the proposed internal and external consultation on the 
Corporate Plan to engage target groups (such as minority communities 
and people with disabilities) building engagement over time with our 
community with a view to empowering users, supporting the communities 
own efforts with the aim of achieving improved outcomes.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The Medium Term Financial Plan will be updated with the contents of the 
plan to ensure that resources are directed towards priorities
 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
Promoting environmentally sustainable policies is one of the Council’s 
objectives

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
The Plan will be subject to external and internal consultation.

The Council has established mechanisms using the Citizens Panel 
through which it can engage and consult the public. The use of the 
website and exhibitions provide further means of communicating the plan, 
inviting comment and identifying potential partners – including community 
partners. By giving specific consideration to engaging minority groups and 

Page 11



others (identified in equalities legislation as having ‘protected 
characteristics’), as well as our own staff, the consultation process offers 
an opportunity to build relations with our communities, allowing those 
affected by the way we carry out our functions to have a real input, to 
secure ongoing and active participation leading to improved outcomes, 
and empowering both service users and employees.

6.8 Risk Assessment
Good risk management will be a key ingredient to the effective delivery of 
the new Corporate Plan. 

The Corporate Plan contains details of the significant risks its successful 
implementation. These risks have been extracted from the Council’s Risk 
Register. The key significant corporate risks are as follows:

The Corporate Plan contains details of the significant risks its successful 
implementation. These risks have been extracted from the Council’s Risk 
Register. The key significant corporate risks are as follows:

 Risk of insufficient funds to deliver plan
 Risk that the Council does not deliver its committed efficiencies and 

rationalisation plans 
 Risk of reducing resources as a consequence of future local 

government finance settlements
 Demographic changes placing additional pressures on Council service 

delivery obligations
 Risk that the Council can not retain an adequate workforce
 Impact of partners’ poor performance on service delivery and risk that 

partner assurances are not in place or are inadequate.

The Council’s Risk Management Policy requires effective management of 
all risks. Actions are established to mitigate these key corporate risks 
along with service specific high risks and project risks. Progress against 
these actions is monitored as part of the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework.   

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact

Moorlands House Andrew Stokes
Executive Director 
(Transformation)

Page 12



7 Background and Introduction

7.1 The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate 
objectives and established key priorities for the medium term i.e. in the case 
of the District Council covering a period of up to four years (the life of a 
political administration). It in effect establishes the Council’s commitments in 
the delivery of services and community leadership to the citizens of 
Staffordshire Moorlands.

7.2 The existing Corporate Plan was agreed by the Council in October 2015 and 
was developed in the period that followed the local elections in May 2015. It is 
appropriate that following the recent election in May 2019 that there is a 
fundamental review of the Corporate Plan. The purpose of this report 
therefore is for the Council to: 

 Consider and approve the core of a new Corporate Plan i.e. vision, aims, 
objectives and priorities;

 Agree to a process for wider consultation on its contents; and
 Agree a process for the development of a new local performance 

framework to facilitate the monitoring of progress with the delivery of the 
plan.

8 Development of the Corporate Plan 

8.1 The existing Corporate Plan was developed after taking into account the 
following framework of understanding:

 The views and aspirations of Staffordshire Moorlands citizens - as 
established by the extensive consultation activity undertaken on a regular 
basis;

 A clear understanding of empirical evidence - such as demographic 
information and quality of life indicators that identify the local issues that 
need to be tackled;

 Recognition of the national and regional policy framework – taking 
into account central government requirements and the requirements of 
regional agencies where appropriate; and

 Learning from the progress made by the Council and understanding 
the improvements that need to be made – as provided by the ongoing 
assessments of the Council’s performance. 

8.2 The new Corporate Plan will build on the existing plans and priorities and 
importantly will be steered by the political administration with the mandate 
provided in the recent local elections. However the Corporate Plan is a 
document that needs to be owned by the whole Council. As a consequence 
the Council held a members’ priority setting events. This took place on 15th 
July. The issues raised by the members on the day in the area based group 
sessions are summarised at Appendix C. 

Page 13



9 Council’s Vision, Aims and Objectives

9.1 The vision of the Council is restated as:   

“Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet 
the needs and aspirations of our communities” 

9.2 This vision is articulated further by four aims, these have been amended 
slightly from those included in the existing Corporate Plan to: 

 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to 
live & work

 Effective use of resources  and provide value for money
 Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of 

towns and villages
 Protect and improve the environment 

9.3 The first aim recognises that the Council has a broader role and has to work 
with partners to deliver more holistic outcomes. The second aim commits to 
the continuous improvement of services and reinforces the desire to provide 
value for money.    

9.4 The third and fourth aims form the additional ambitions of the Council which 
are to be focused around supporting the development of the local economy 
and environment. 

9.5 It is necessary to establish objectives to ensure that the aims are developed 
into clear actions. 

9.6 The Corporate Plan proposes 20 objectives split across the 4 aims. The 
objectives are detailed in the table below:

Aim Objectives

Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for 
our communities to live 
& work

 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes
 Develop a positive relationship with communities
 Effective relationship with strategic partners
 Effective support of community safety arrangements 

including CCTV
 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities 

focused upon improving health

Effective use of 
resources and provide 
value for money

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money

 Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in 
the appropriate channels and provided “right first time”

 A high performing and well motivated workforce
 More effective use of Council assets
 Effective procurement with a focus on local business
 Effective use of ICT 

Page 14



Aim Objectives

Help create a strong 
economy by supporting 
further regeneration of 
towns and villages

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises
 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy
 Encourage and develop tourism
 High quality development and building control with an 

“open for business” approach

Protect and improve the 
environment 

 Effective recycling and waste management
 Meeting the challenge of climate change
 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and 

environmental health
 Provision of quality parks and  open spaces
 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, 

businesses and visitors

9.7 The objectives have been amended from the previous Corporate Plan in the 
following way:

 An additional objective has been added to reflect the commitment to 
establishing a new procurement strategy that has a focus upon spending 
locally;

 An additional objective has been added to specifically make reference  to 
the work around the development of the Council’s ICT and digital strategy; 
and

 The previous objective which was focussed on adopting environmentally 
friendly policies has been amended to reflect the Council’s commitment 
around climate change.  

9.8 These objectives will also provide the framework for the delivery of service 
plans. 

10 Influencing Role

10.1 The delivery of public services in the Staffordshire Moorlands is undertaken by 
a variety of partners including the Council, Staffordshire County Council, 
Staffordshire Police, parish and town councils etc. 

10.2 The Council is committed to play the lead role in championing the local area. 
This is the community leadership role. Fulfilling this role effectively will mean 
influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to ensure that services 
are shaped and delivered around the needs and aspirations of citizens. The 
Council’s influencing role will be focused in the following priority areas:

 Support the police and other partners to reduce crime, the fear of 
crime and anti social behaviour 

Page 15



 Ensure there is effective health provision particularly for the elderly
 Ensure that there an effective provision of waste and recycling 

centres across the district
 Work with Staffordshire County Council to provide accessible on-

street parking
 We will work with partners to improve the provision of bus services 

which connect our villages with our three market towns for services, 
shopping and leisure.

 Expand the Growth Deal partnership with Staffordshire County 
Council on the will be expanded to provide inward investment 

 Work to combat illegal money lenders such as loan sharks
 Continue to support the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to 

bring trains back to Leek
 Work with Staffordshire County Council to improve both access and 

traffic flows to our town centres

11 Priority Outcomes and Actions

11.1 A key contribution to the achievements of the Council in the past was the fact 
that the Council had well established priorities. It is important therefore that 
this practice continues. The proposed priority outcomes are detailed in the 
table below:

Aim Priority Outcomes

Help create a safer and healthier 
environment for our 
communities to live & work

 Increased supply of quality affordable housing 
 Improved health
 Improved community safety

Meet our financial challenges 
and provide value for money

 Council services provide value for money
 High level of resident and customer satisfaction

Help create a strong economy by 
supporting further regeneration 
of towns and villages

 Sustainable towns and rural communities 
 Increased economic growth
 Increased tourism

Protect and improve the 
environment 

 High recycling rates
 Reduction in carbon emissions

11.2 These key priority outcomes will be the highest priority in the development of 
performance targets and key actions. A significant proportion of the Council’s 
resources will be directed towards them. 

11.3 The achievement of the Council’s objectives will be supported by a number of 
priority actions to ensure step improvements and maximum impact upon the 
priority outcomes. These will be implemented over the life of the Corporate 

Page 16



Plan and progress will be closely monitored and reported as part of the 
Council’s performance management framework. 

11.4 The key actions committed in the Corporate Plan are summarised in Appendix 
C

12 Measurement of Performance

12.1 As with previous versions, the new Corporate Plan will need to identify key 
performance indicators. These will in effect form the measurement of the 
progress the Council is making against each objective and form the basis of 
performance reporting to Cabinet, the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel, 
and the Alliance Management Team (AMT). 

12.2 Targets will need to be established in the Corporate Plan for these indicators 
for the medium term. These targets will need to be set at level where it can be 
demonstrated that Council is making a contribution towards its priority 
outcomes.   

12.3 Once the Council has approved the core of its new Corporate Plan i.e. Vision, 
Aims, Objectives and Priorities, members will then be in a position to 
determine a set of local performance indicators and targets. It is suggested 
that this is done during September and October and presented to the 
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel for consideration at its meeting to be 
held on 25th November. 

12.4 The exercise of developing key performance indicators is a unique opportunity 
to ensure that performance is properly focussed around local priorities. It will 
be important to ensure that the performance measures contribute towards 
measuring achievements against the Council’s priority outcomes.

13 Consultation with the Community

13.1 The vision, aims, objectives, and priorities proposed in this Corporate Plan 
have been developed after taking into account the ongoing dialogue with the 
communities of Staffordshire Moorlands. It is essential that this dialogue 
continues.   

13.2 After adoption of the Corporate Plan by the Council it is recommended that 
there is a period of consultation with the community. This consultation should 
focus upon the following:  

 Informing the public about our Corporate Plan, promoting an 
understanding of its objectives and the rational for the priorities 

 Providing an opportunity for the public to comment and contribute to the 
development of service/delivery plans.

 Informing and engaging our staff as a means of developing understanding, 
commitment and contribution of ideas.

Page 17



 Informing and engaging our key partners and wider stakeholders.
 Fulfilling our public sector duties and ‘equality expectations’ to consult 

people with regard to race, gender and disability and the impact of the 
Plan.

 Considering wider equality issues – how we address inequalities and how 
we meet the needs of distinct groups of people in our community (such as 
older people, young people, gay lesbian bisexual and transgender people)

 Identifying how service delivery and activity can be improved – identifying 
potential barriers to the achievement of our objectives and

 Identifying opportunities for communities, voluntary and community groups 
and other stakeholders to work with us to achieve our objectives.

14 Process for Approval and Adoption of the Corporate Plan 

14.1 In order to ensure its successful implementation the vision, aims, objectives 
and priorities of the Corporate Plan require buy in from all members and 
officers.

14.2 In order to allow all members proper consideration the following process has 
been adopted: 

 Members’ priority setting event (15th July 2019)
 Consideration by the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel (2nd October 

2019)
 Consideration by Cabinet (8th October 2019)
 Consideration by full Council (16th October 2019)

14.3 In order to ensure full implementation of the plan a number of further actions 
are also required. These are as follows:

 Update of the Forward Plan and Select Committee work programmes to 
reflect the new key projects contained within the Plan (October 2019) 

 Development of project plans for new key projects (October 2019) 
 External publicity of the contents of the plan to ensure accountability for 

delivery (October 2019)
 Update of the Council’s Performance Management framework to ensure 

that there is effective monitoring of progress (November 2019)
 Development of performance scorecards / dashboards for monitoring 

achievement against the established priority outcomes (November 2019)
 Update of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan to ensure resources 

are directed into achieving the objectives and priority outcomes (December 
2019)

15 Process for Review

15.1 The Council has established a practice of refreshing its Corporate Plan on a 
four-yearly basis i.e. following a local election. This ensures that the plan 

Page 18



reflects the political priorities of the Council and the process allows all 
councillors an opportunity to feed in issues at the start of the new 
administration. 

15.2 The performance framework will need to be reconsidered on an annual basis 
in order to establish targets for each individual financial year. This will provide 
a regular opportunity for members to keep the overall plan and its direction 
under review. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Corporate Plan
2019-2023 

Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high quality services that meet the needs and aspirations of our communities 

P
age 21



In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate 

communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives
 Develop and implement an ongoing indoor leisure facilities improvement 

plan focused on improving the health and wellbeing of residents
 Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan 

focussed around the “sports village” concept 

 Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed 
recommendations

 Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist 
housing

 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for 
homeowners and private tenants

 Review the Council’s community safety arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community groups

 Refresh the Council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure that 
there is a more effective dialogue with residents

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive 
outcomes around…
 Reducing crime, the fear of crime and anti social behaviour
 Ensuring effective health provision particularly for the elderly
 Combating illegal money lenders such as loan sharks

Our key priorities will be…
 An increased supply of quality affordable housing
 Improved health
 Improved community safety

       Aim 1: To help create a safer and healthier environment 
for our communities to live and work

Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:

 Increased supply of
good quality

affordable homes

 Develop a positive
relationship with

communities

 Effective relationship
with strategic partners

 Effective support of
community safety

arrangements
including CCTV

 Provision of sports
facilities and leisure

opportunities focused
upon improving health

P
age 22



To use resources effectively and provide value 
for money       Aim 2: 
In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative 

ways of generating income
 Implement the Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation 

Programme
 Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to 

ensure that our workforce is developed effectively
 Continue to embed good information management practices 

through the ASSURED framework
 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the 

delivery of services
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on 

spending money locally
 Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that Council 

services are accessible to all
 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, 

including a review of public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are in place  

Our key priorities will be…
 Providing value for money council services
 High levels of resident and customer satisfaction

Our key objectives
for 2019-2023 are:

 Effective use of
financial and other

resources to ensure
value for money

 Ensure our services
are easily available to
all our residents in the
appropriate channels

and provided “right
first time”

 A high performing and
well motivated

workforce

Effective procurement with 
a focus on local business

Effective use of ICT

 More effective use of
Council assets

P
age 23



       Aim 3: 
 

 “ 

 

To help create a strong economy by supporting
further regeneration of towns and villages

In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Implement the Council’s Growth Strategy to bring about the regeneration of 

towns and rural communities
 Develop a masterplan for bringing redundant mills back into use
 Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links
 Support the development of the former Churnet Works site in Leek
 Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the positive impact to our 

communities 
 Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations
 Adopt a new Local Plan
Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive 
outcomes around…
 The provision of bus services which connect our villages with our three 

market towns for services, shopping and leisure
 Expanding the Growth Deal Partnership to provide inward investment
 Supporting the Churnet Valley Railway with their plans to bring trains 

back to Leek
 Improved access and traffic flows to our town centres

Our key priorities will be…
 Sustainable towns and rural communities
 Increased economic growth
 Increased tourism

Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:

 Encourage business
start-ups and

enterprises

 Flourishing town
centres that support the

local economy

 Encourage and
develop tourism

 High quality
development and

building control with an
“open for business”

approach

P
age 24



                             Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment

Our key objectives for
2019-2023 are:

 Effective recycling and
waste management

Meeting the challenges 
of climate change 

Provision of high quality
public amenities,
clean streets and

environmental health
Provision of quality

parks and open spaces
 Car parking

arrangements that
meet the needs of

residents, businesses
and visitors

In order to meet these objectives we will…
 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to AES, to deliver 

ground maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to achieve 
improved performance and value for money outcomes 

 Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency

 Review the Council’s waste and recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the emerging new national strategy  

 Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens
 Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks
 Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the 

needs of residents and visitors

 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to 
further reduce environmental crime

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive 
outcomes around…
 The provision of waste and recycling centres across the district
 The provision of accessible on-street parking

Our key priorities will be…
 High recycling rates
 Reduced carbon emissions

P
age 25



 

P
age 26



APPENDIX B

Corporate Plan – Priority Actions (September 2015)

Portfolio Priority Actions

Leader  Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating 
income

 Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links 
 Develop a masterplan for bringing redundant mills back into use 
 Support the development of the former Churnet Works site in Leek
 Refresh the Council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 

more effective dialogue with residents
 Implement the Council’s Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme
 Implement the Council’s Growth Strategy to bring about the regeneration of towns 

and rural communities
 Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure that our workforce 

is developed effectively  

Leisure & Sports  Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks
 Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate the 

communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives 
 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance Environmental 

Services Ltd, to deliver ground maintenance services on behalf of the Council in 
order to achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes

 Develop a plan to improve Brough Park and John Hall Gardens
 Develop and implement an ongoing indoor leisure facilities improvement plan 

focussed on improving the health and wellbeing of residents
 Develop and implement an outdoor leisure facilities improvement plan focussed 

around the “sports village” concept 

Customer Services  Continue to embed good information management practices through the 
ASSURED framework

 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money locally 
 Develop an Access to Services to ensure that Council services are accessible to all

Environment  Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance Environmental 
Services Ltd to deliver street cleansing services on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes

 Review the Council’s waste & recycling arrangements to increase recycling and to 
respond to the emerging new national strategy

 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further 
environmental crime 

Climate Change  Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a declared 
climate emergency

Page 27



Portfolio Priority Actions

Communities  Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed 
recommendations

 Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist housing
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for homeowners 

and private tenants
 Develop a Tourism Strategy to maximise the positive impact to our communities
 Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain strong 

partnerships with community groups    

Planning and Property
 

 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public 
estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in place

 Develop and implement plans to improve the public market operations 
 Adopt a new Local Plan
 Develop a new Parking Strategy to ensure that our car parks meet the needs of 

residents and visitors

Page 28



APPENDIX C
Outcomes from Member Priority Setting Workshop – 15th July 2019

Safe and Healthy Communities 

Theme Councillors’ Comments

Housing  Large % of affordable housing needed - investigate what grants are available
 Don’t rely on private developers to provide housing
 Provide cheaper community homes
 Provide environmentally friendly homes
 Provide more bungalows and retirement homes
 Work with partners when building new homes i.e. fire brigade for smoke alarms
 Go beyond basic minimum building regulations - look for higher standards
 Find incentives for builders
 Act as a brokerage so smaller developers can access finance
 Use small brownfield sites /old mills etc. for housing development
 Consider quirky housing designs i.e. co-housing concept
 Provide a list of empty properties to Councillors with the reasons why they are empty
 Encourage homeworking
 Attract younger workers

Community Safety  Retain the police surgeries and satellite posts, promote positive police activities.

Community Engagement / 
Development

 Improve community events i.e. increase Councillors surgeries
 Councillors should attend more community events
 Utilise local schools and church halls to set up multi purpose community hubs

P
age 29



Theme Councillors’ Comments

Leisure  Increase activities for older and younger residents
 Improve the leisure centre
 Link with U3A (fitness classes for older residents)
 Set up a walking for health programme
 Promote our own environment for leisure/fitness i.e. The Roaches
 Provide walking maps at car parks for a minimal fee (vending machine) 
 Set up specific social media groups for events i.e. young persons sports groups
 Look at how sports councils operate
 Re-instate sports user groups in conjunction with leisure centres
 Encourage younger people into sport especially in the villages
 Simplify the process for setting up sports groups i.e. football teams

Health  Keep local hospitals
 Replace CCG with a more efficient CCG as there are a number that are run successfully
 Hold CCG to account and get more involved

P
age 30



Effective Use of Resources

Theme Councillors’ Comments

Organisational Development  How do we care for the workforce i.e. not overworked, focus on staff wellbeing, stress management & encourage 
a work life balance

 Nurture our staff, invest in training to improve skills, succession planning, make them feel empowered, aim to 
retain and provide career development

 Are they overworked with smaller team numbers, make sure we are not asking too much
 Listen to the voices, what they have to say
 Try to increase morale - it must be demoralising if someone has an idea that can’t be fulfilled due to lack of money 

or people
 Can we increase apprenticeships – get young, enthusiastic staff in but managed properly so not adding extra work 

- find a balance
 Promote better/easier ways for teams to communicate  
 Most valuable asset is our Staff

Procurement  Use local contractors to look after local areas.
 Model Local Procurement – Boost Local Economy

Efficiency / Finance  Understand/publicise more about how we spend money Vs how it comes in, and how is that spending/saving 
prioritised?

 Value for money for our Residents should always be the priority 
 Communicate to the public what we do, how we are trying to save money!
 Ask staff what they think, if we could do this any differently – to make it any cheaper 
 Is charging for replacement bins / charging at the tip worthwhile, what is the cost of the associated fly-tipping as a 

result?
 We should only pay out to Members when the meetings take place

P
age 31



Theme Councillors’ Comments

Access to Services  How do we measure Customer Services?
 Digital focus – we need to keep up with the times
 Put more resources into digitising services so they’re available online
 More demographic engagement – understanding what our Residents want
 Encourage Members to get involved with more online conversation with residents
 Can we get more partner agencies back into One Stop Shops?
 Offer a variety of channels available for customers to use, making sure no one is excluded
 Review website use, and use identified trends to shape future 
 Put processes on line, so customers can self serve - help encourage a paperless society 
 Always consider those with no internet access (rural areas) or digital skills 

Assets  Properties as assets – feed back outcome of property/accommodation reviews to Members
 Look to reduce staffing costs/ overhead costs by handing over properties to partners/organisations i.e. Biddulph P

age 32



Local Economy

Theme Councillors’ Comments

Transport  Connectivity – Public Transport (rural villages).
 Student transport
 Highways and pavement painted lines maintenance – safety issues
 Enforcement of car parking outside schools / on pavements – including leaving engines running and children 

having to walk through engine fumes etc.
 Leek Shared space (SCC) – original design/money needed to be spent on to make safe 

Business Development  Our resource input – Tourism spend is high, what about industry / manufacturing?
 Help to develop business skills with schools and colleges, apprenticeships, work experience
 Council sponsorship of business awards - similar to sports awards
 Encourage local business to promote / support our local economy
 Investment in business premises – incubator units, opportunities for expansion as the business grows
 Impact of Local Plan on Biddulph businesses
 Interdependencies of these priorities e.g. planning, tourism, growth, town centres
 Role of partners such as the Chamber of Commerce and LEP
 New business shouldn’t just be focused on the service economy – manufacturing base is important
 Lack of start-up premises 
 Better mix of industrial premises needed
 Business advice and support
 Facilitate live / working
 Jobs for young people – skilled roles
 Skills training
 Measured risk investment – Council’s role to build business premises
 Promote the local area – Open 4 Business
 How do we set ourselves apart from other areas – high quality rural provision of premises? What’s our USP?
 Business liaison
 A Business Plan for the area

Connectivity  Digital Connectivity – free Wi-Fi for 2 years in council premises

P
age 33



Theme Councillors’ Comments

Tourism  Tourism links – neighbouring market towns, e.g. Buxton, Ashbourne, Congleton
 Encourage new ideas e.g. Totally Locally
 Tourism – council as an enabler. More support for local festivals and getting organisers to focus on local economic 

benefits
 Sustainable tourism / transport links arguments vs remote locations and outdoor pursuits accessed by car

P
age 34



Protecting the Environment

Theme Councillors’ Comments

Waste & Recycling  Increase recycling efficiency
 Look into re-introducing recycling banks in car parks and public areas
 Work with supermarkets to encourage recycling – returning glass for money etc.  
 Encourage what to recycle and reuse 

Public Conveniences  Public Toilets in all areas – current cleanliness / unwelcoming/ maintenance.  
 Lack of public toilets and opening hours in evening.  
 Lack of disabled toilets in evening (some are closed with shutter)
 Public toilet state has link to what tourists’ first impression of area is
 Lack of public toilets/state of public toilets links to ASB.

Street Cleansing  Street cleaning including weeding.
 Dog Fouling
 Street furniture – upkeep/maintenance.  First impression to visitors.
 Total ban on Chinese Lanterns.
 Litter enforcement – no deterrent (Rather than clean up leave for a month and use as example)
 Promote litter picking and officer/facilities for members to use – litter picking equipment etc.
 Work with schools to promote and award litter picking
 Increase litter bins and re-look at design of litter bins (cigarette butts left on top)

Parks & Open Spaces  Encourage more wildlife
 Local tree planting / flower borders / fruit trees / veg boxes
 Community Orchard
 Trim Trail
 Wildlife meadow e.g. within Brough Park
 Wildlife youth groups – voluntary work / parks areas.  Youth provision
 Environment working group – financial and officer support needed to give teeth to

P
age 35



Theme Councillors’ Comments

Climate Change  Look into recycling facilities within council buildings – set example
 Log Burners – clean air, enforcement of smoke free zones.
 Local Authority need to lead on climate change.  
 Reduce emissions
 Lead by example
 Encourage car sharing
 Smaller things to make a big difference
 District heating, shared boilers / improved building
 Work closer together – but think about carbon footprint (can we save money by not travelling as much, make 

better use of conference call facility/digital working)
 Solar panels on council buildings/assets
 Promote walking to schools
 Meanwhile space – temporary use of a site that has potential in the future but that is currently vacant.
 Use electric vehicles (but we’d need charge points)
 Think about the use of energy as a resource – be more focussed on climate change 
 Think more about our own carbon footprint, encourage car sharing
 Employ a climate change champion to take us forward
 Look into reducing our Energy overheads more, e.g. heating only comes on when needed – and energy efficient 

lighting that goes off automatically/solar panels/stop using plastic cups
 Deal only with suppliers who care about climate change/ reducing plastic

Car Parking  Electric charging points on car parks : free parking for electric cars
 Electric charging points - look into central pot of funding
 Digital car parking machines
 Maintenance of car parks (Moorlands House rear car park as example of needing attention)

P
age 36



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel

2 October 2019

TITLE: Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-
2019 & MHCLG Guidance

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Sally Hampton - Member and Community 
Services Officer & 
Linden Vernon – Senior Officer – 
Governance and Member Support

WARDS INVOLVED: None Specific

Appendix Attached – Appendix A
Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Panels

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide Councillors with a summary of:

 The work undertaken by the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
during 2018 – 2019 and 

 Guidance issued on the Overview and Scrutiny function in Local and 
Combined Authorities

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 During 2018/19, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels continued to 
scrutinise performance internally/externally, hold the Cabinet to account and 
contribute to policy development.  The range of work and issues considered by 
each Panel during 2018/19 are summarised in sections 6 - 9 of the report.  
Appendix A of the report contains the terms of reference of each Panel and its 
membership.

3.2 Section 10 of this report also summarises for members the statutory guidance 
issued by the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
(MHCLG) on scrutiny in Local Government and Combined Authorities.

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective scrutiny and development of Council policies and services.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

 Overview & Scrutiny Panel agendas and 
reports

 MHCLG Statutory Guidance on Overview and 
Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities

 CfPS – The Good Scrutiny Guide

Sally Hampton
Member and Community Services Officer
email: sally.hampton@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk &
Linden Vernon
Senior Officer - Governance and Member Support
email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

5. Detail

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-2019

5.1 The Cabinet is responsible for making the day-to-day decisions concerning the 
implementation of policies of the Council.  Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
ensure that the Cabinet is publicly held to account for their actions and seeks 
to promote open and transparent decision- making and democratic 
accountability.  They also have a role in researching, scrutinising other bodies 
and ensuring that the Council’s policy and budget framework is respected and 
realising the key aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels may appoint Task and Finish Working Groups/Sub-Committees to 
examine any issue in more depth.  

5.2 Effective participation has taken place with the involvement of partners, 
outside organisations and individuals at Panel and Working Group meetings.  
Cabinet Portfolio Holders also attend such meetings to provide updates or 
answer questions. 

5.3 Each Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for setting its own Work 
Programme.  These are informed by the Council’s Forward Plan containing 
Key Decisions to be made by the Council’s Cabinet. The Work Programme is 
listed as a standing item for review and approval at each Panel meeting.  
Executive Directors work closely with the Chairs of each Panel to assist in the 
planning of agendas, provide briefings and ensure the Panel meets its 
objectives.  Support is also provided by the Democratic and Community 
Services Team together with Officers from the Council’s various service areas.

6. Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel

6.1 To ensure that financial management is sound thorough consideration was 
given to regular financial, procurement and performance reports, which 

Page 38

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?CT=13106,13236
https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?CT=13106,13236
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-and-combined-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/overview-and-scrutiny-statutory-guidance-for-councils-and-combined-authorities
https://www.cfps.org.uk/the-good-scrutiny-guide/


included performance against the budget and a review of fees and charges. 
Members were kept up to date with progress with regard to the Council’s 
Efficiency Programme, revenue collection, treasury management, Capital 
Programme and customer feedback.

6.2 The findings from the Annual Report, the revised Corporate Plan and the 
2018/19 Performance Framework were presented to members and 
recommended for approval by Cabinet.

6.3 Councillor Ralphs presented the proposed Budget for 2019/20, the updated 
Medium-Term Financial Plan 2019/20 – 2022/23, the Capital Strategy 
2019/20, the proposed Fees and Charges for 2019/20 and the Procurement 
Forward Plan for 2019/20. Members had the opportunity to scrutinise the 
details for each item contained within the appendices to the main report.

6.4 Claire Hazeldene – Finance, Income & Procurement Manager, gave a 
presentation to members to clarify details regarding the Council’s recovery of 
Council Tax and presented a report on the Retained Business Rates – 75% 
Pilot bid.

6.5 The Panel received a report on the latest stages of the implementation of the 
Alliance Environmental Services company. Members had the opportunity to 
raise their concerns around the governance of the company and were able to 
scrutinise the financial elements of this arrangement.

6.6 On two occasions, Ben Haywood – Operations Manager, Development 
Services and Sally Curley – Project Officer, attended to clarify the Section106 
process to members and answered queries around this matter. 

6.7 Mike Towers - Senior Officer, Housing, Public Health & Licencing, gave 
members an update on the process of transferring the Disabled Facilities 
Grant scheme to a new provider – Millbrook Healthcare Ltd. At a subsequent 
meeting, Chris Williams (Operations Manager – Millbrook Healthcare), was 
present to provide members with detailed information and statistics about the 
company.

6.8 Executive Director (Transformation) - Andrew Stokes, gave a presentation to 
members on the Ascent LLP housing delivery programme, outlining the history 
of the Ascent housing delivery programme from its establishment in October 
2010, its constitutional make-up, its diversified nature, number of houses 
completed and provision of employment. Now the programme had ended, 
members were advised of the options available to the Council and detailed 
financial information around the proposals were outlined to members.

6.9 The Panel dealt with the Call-in of the Cabinet Delegated Decision on the  
Management Structure. Following a vote it was decided not to refer the 
decision back to Cabinet. 

Page 39



7. Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel

7.1 The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year focused on services 
provided by the authority.  This included regular updates on the formation of 
Alliance Environmental Services (AES) and detail on each phase of the 
transfer of services to the new company. Members considered the service 
specification to ensure that future service delivery met the requirements of the 
Council and supported the development of the new operating arrangements.

7.2 Consideration was given to a variety of regeneration items such as the Growth 
Strategy, Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme and proposals in the draft 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), which were subject to 
consultation. Members were kept informed of the timescales associated with 
these items and how they would assist with the delivery of sustainable growth 
in the District.

7.3 Dai Larner – Executive Director (Place), introduced the draft Housing 
Implementation Strategy which had been prepared as part of the ongoing 
Local Plan examination and provided an update on progress on the 
preparation of an Investment and Acquisition Strategy.

7.4 By request of the Panel, Robin Cummings, Service Lead for Street Cleansing, 
provided a presentation on the Street Cleansing Service and responded to any 
queries and concerns members raised.

7.5 Members were updated on the progress on the first year delivery of Council’s 
Strategy for Physical Activity and Sport and considered a report which agreed 
a way forward for the establishment of the future arrangements for the 
management of the Council’s leisure centres post March 2019. 

7.6 Glen Hall - Operations Director, Alex Godfrey - Regional Director and Elaine 
Harding – Staffordshire Moorlands General Manager, attended a meeting to 
provide an annual performance update on behalf of Parkwood Leisure. 

7.7 The Panel received a detailed presentation on the management transfer of the 
Council’s Countryside Sites, an update report on the progress on the 
reinstatement of the heritage rail link from Leekbrook to Leek (Cornhill) and an 
update on the operation of the Markets.

7.8 Finally, the Panel considered the Call-in request of the Cabinet decision in 
relation to the Town Centre Regeneration and Investment Programme. After 
detailed debate, members decided not to refer the decision back to Cabinet 
but requested that the final bid for the Future High Street Fund be brought to 
the Panel at a future meeting.

8. Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel

8.1 Members scrutinised annual updates on the Fire and Rescue Service from 
Brian Moss, Head of Northern Service Delivery Group and from Chief 

Page 40



Inspector Mark Thorley, in relation to the operational policing of the area. In 
addition to this, Chief Inspector Thorley, attended on another occasion in 
response to a spate of graffiti in the area.

8.2 Further to a letter being sent to the Secretary of State for Education in relation 
to funding for schools, Andrew Shaw, Executive Head of the Leek Federation, 
attended a subsequent meeting of the Panel. The Panel was thanked for 
sending the letter; the Leek Education Partnership had noted and recognised 
the Panel’s support on this matter.

8.3 Following the changes in the governance arrangements for Your Moorlands, 
this Panel received two 6 monthly updates from Your Housing Group. On each 
occasion members considered the legacy agreement and performance  
reports introduced by Sharon Wheeler - Property Manager South and Paul 
Stanners – Service Manager. 

8.4 The Panel recommended Cabinet to approve the Council’s revised 
Safeguarding Policy following its consideration of a report which updated 
councillors on the Council’s actions to meet its safeguarding duties.

8.5 At the request of the Panel, Esther Jones, Staffordshire Moorlands Team 
Leader, gave a presentation to the Panel on Support Staffordshire’s current 
services and Peter Davies – Project Co-ordinator, attended a meeting to 
advise members of the work carried out by the Foodbank in Leek. Following 
this update the Council made arrangements for a foodbank collection box to 
be located in the reception area at Moorlands House.

8.6 In response to members concerns in relation to the level of fly-tipping in the 
area, the Council’s Head of Operational Services, provided an overview of this 
issue and the service provided to remove reported instances of fly-tipping. 
Some slides were shown to the Panel to demonstrate the levels of fly-tipping 
in comparison to other local authorities.   In addition to this, David Smith, 
Principal Officer (Partnerships and Communities), explained the 
Environmental Protection Act, the process for enforcement of fly-tipping 
offences and the level of fines which could be issued. 

8.7 Members considered a report on Environmental Enforcement and proposed 
changes to the levels of the fixed penalty notices set by the Council and 
scrutinised a report which outlined the findings of a review of the Council’s 
public realm CCTV system.

8.8 Matthew Ellis, Staffordshire Commissioner, updated members on the new joint 
governance arrangements and provided an annual update to the Panel.

8.9 Individual presentations for Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek Citizens Advice 
Bureaux (CAB) were considered by the Panel.  Each presentation contained 
statistical information and case studies. The Panel also had the opportunity to 
give its consideration to the Citizens Advice Bureau merger business case 
which had identified long term financial challenges that required urgent action 
to ensure that high quality advice services continued to be provided to the 
citizens of Leek, Cheadle and their surrounding areas. 

Page 41



8.10 Following concerns about proposed on street pay and display parking across 
Staffordshire, Lee Barnard, Traffic Management Act Manager, Staffordshire 
County Council, provided members with some background information on the 
proposed changes to parking and listened to members comments in relation to 
this matter.

8.11 The minutes of the last Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel and reports 
from the Chairman were issued with each agenda for the Panel to be kept 
informed of the work undertaken by the Panel at the County Council.

9. Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel

9.1 The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year, focused on items 
relating to the health service at the request of the Panel via the Work 
Programme. Members received updates from each of the representatives 
below and had the opportunity to ask questions:-

 Karen Clowes, CAMHS Service Manager & Julia Matthews, Highly 
Specialist Systemic Family Psychotherapist, North Staffordshire 
Combined Healthcare NHS Trust, gave a presentation on the Eating 
Disorder Service

 Marcus Warnes, Accountable Officer, North Staffordshire CCG, on the 
Future of Local Health Services in Northern Staffordshire.

 Howard King - Managing Director of Specialist Services, MPFT, set out 
the changes to the diabetic eye screening clinics in the area. 

 Liz Johnson – Service Manager, provided the Panel with an overview of 
the services provided by Changes Health and Wellbeing

9.2 The Panel discussed the future of Leek Moorlands Hospital and received an 
update on the outcomes of a meeting of Leek Town Council in relation to this 
matter. 

9.3 Members were in agreement that the Moorlands required a centre of 
excellence for dementia and set up a Dementia Care Working Group. This 
group has met on a number of occasions and recommended the following 
proposals which were agreed:

 That the Council became Dementia Friendly;
 For Councillors to receive Dementia Friendly training;
 That Council Officers consider ways in which the Council may be able 

to assist organisations to offer a drop in facility.

The Working Group continues to meet and will report back to this Panel.

9.4 The minutes of the last Staffordshire County Council Healthy Staffordshire 
Committee were issued with each agenda for the Panel to be kept informed of 
the work undertaken by the Committee.

Page 42



10. Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local Authorities and Combined 
Authorities.

Introduction

10.1 The overview and scrutiny function was introduced by the Local Government 
Act 2000 as part of new governance arrangements to ensure that members of 
a council who were not part of the executive (Cabinet) could hold the 
executive to account for the decisions and actions that affect their 
communities.

10.2 In May 2019 the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) issued revised statutory guidance for overview and scrutiny which 
authorities should have regard to when exercising their functions.  This 
recognises that the way in which local government services are delivered has 
changed (e.g. in partnership with other organisations and creation of joint 
ventures etc.) since the function was first established. This guidance was also 
complimented in June 2019 by ‘The Good Scrutiny Guide’ published by the 
Centre for Public Scrutiny.

10.3 Current legislation recognises that authorities are best placed to determine 
which arrangements best suit their own individual needs and provides for a 
great degree of flexibility to decide which arrangements to adopt.

10.4 The Guidance states that effective overview and scrutiny should:

 Provide constructive “critical friend” challenge
 Amplify the voices and concerns of the public
 Be led by independent people who take responsibility for their role
 Drive improvement in public services

Culture

10.5 The Guidance also underlines the importance of scrutiny being led and owned 
by members given their role in setting and maintaining the culture of an 
authority.  This can be done by:

 Recognising scrutiny’s legal and democratic legitimacy – a statutory 
requirement for all councils and to act as a check and balance on the 
executive.

 Identifying a clear role and focus – ensuring the function is concentrated on 
delivering work that is of genuine value and relevance to the work of the 
Council.

 Ensuring an early and regular engagement between the executive and 
scrutiny – enabling planning to take place for future work programmes 
ensuring that the role of scrutiny be that of a ‘critical friend’ and not a de 
facto ‘opposition’.

 Managing disagreement – the executive and scrutiny working to reduce the 
risk of disagreement, taking steps to predict, identify and act, perhaps by 
using a framework such as an ‘executive-scrutiny protocol’.

Page 43



 Providing the necessary support – the level of resource is for each council 
to consider taking into account the local scrutiny committee structure and 
remit.

 Ensuring impartial advice from officers – particularly from council’s 
statutory officers – the monitoring officer, the section 151 officer and the 
head of paid service to ensure that timely, relevant and high quality advice 
is provided.

 Communicating scrutiny’s role and purpose to the wider authority – 
ensuring that members and officers are aware of the role of scrutiny for the 
wider council, its powers, the outcomes it can deliver, its membership and 
those providing officer support.

 Maintaining the interest of full Council in the work of scrutiny committee – 
this may be done by incorporating recommendations into reports to Full 
Council, taking into account the relevance of reports.

 Communicating scrutiny’s role to the public – considering how and when to 
engage communications with the wider community using the council’s 
various communications channels (e.g. press and social media etc.).

 Ensuring scrutiny members are supported in having an independent 
mindset – members should adopt an independent approach which is 
fundamental in carrying out their scrutiny role effectively, despite being 
from the same political group as a member they are scrutinising.

Resourcing

10.6 The Guidance explains that it is for each council to decide on the resources it 
provides to ensure a successful scrutiny function but that this is not solely 
about budgets and provision of officer time but also includes the ways in which 
the wider authority engages with the function.  Factors to consider include 
training requirements of members and officers (e.g. effective questioning and 
chairing skills) and identifying the need for external support where this does 
not exist ‘in-house’.

Committee Members

10.7 While there are proportionality requirements that must be met, the Guidance 
states that the selection of the chair and other committee members is for each 
authority to decide for itself.  Authorities are reminded that members of the 
executive cannot be members of a scrutiny committee.  When political groups 
select individual members to serve on scrutiny committees they should 
consider a member’s experience, expertise, interests, ability to act impartially, 
ability to work as part of a group and capacity to serve.

10.8 The Guidance also states that although these attributes should also apply to 
the Chair of a scrutiny committee, a Chair should also possess the ability to 
lead and build a sense of teamwork and a consensus among committee 
members and draw together key themes and highlight key findings.  Chairs 
should also pay special attention to the need to guard a committee’s 
independence and they should take care to avoid the committee being, and 
being viewed as, a de facto opposition to the executive.

Page 44



10.9 As referred to in the above Resourcing section authorities should ensure that 
councillors are offered relevant training and development opportunities.  This 
includes an induction when they take up their role and ongoing training so they 
can carry out their responsibilities effectively.  This includes knowing their legal 
powers and how to prepare effective questions for scrutiny sessions.

10.10 In some cases it may be appropriate to supplement members and officers 
expertise to fully understand and evaluate the nature of specific topics.  This 
can be achieved by inviting people to attend committee from outside the 
Council who can bring an independent view and technical advice on a subject 
matter.

Power to Access Information

10.11 Scrutiny members should have access to regularly available sources of key 
information about the management of the authority – particularly on 
performance management and risk issues which should be supplemented by 
support from officers with regards to the interpretation of this information.  In 
law scrutiny members have specific powers to access information (e.g. exempt 
or confidential information).  However, the Council’s procedure rules allow all 
members have access to information of this type as a matter of course 
regardless of their committee membership.

10.12 The Guidance reminds scrutiny committee members of their legal power to 
require members of the executive and officers to attend before them to answer 
questions.  It is the duty of members and officers to comply with such 
requests.

10.13 Scrutiny committees may request outside organisations to attend meetings 
and provide information, particularly where they are in receipt of council funds 
to ensure that they are delivering good services.  The Annual Report section of 
this report provides a summary of the wide range of organisations that have 
made presentations to the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels.

Planning Work

10.14 In order to make a difference to the work of a council the Guidance suggests 
that scrutiny committees should plan their long-term agenda through the use 
of a work programme which should be flexible to accommodate any urgent 
issues that may arise during the year.

10.15 The Guidance acknowledges that although scrutiny has the power to look at 
anything which affects ‘the area, or the area’s inhabitants’ prioritisation is 
necessary which means that there might be things that, despite being 
important, scrutiny will not be able to look at.  Focus may therefore be given to 
areas of risk, an authority’s finances or the way that it works with its partners.  
Councillors may also wish to bring their local insight gained from the public 
when considering themes of work for future agendas.  An authority’s customer 
feedback, partners (contractors, voluntary sector etc.) and its executive may 
also assist in the design and alignment of a committees work programme.

Page 45



10.16 When considering whether an item should be included in a work programme 
the Guidance recommends that scrutiny committees should consider the 
following questions:

 Do we understand the benefits scrutiny would bring to the issue?
 How could we best carry out work on this subject?
 What would be the best outcome of this work?
 How would this work engage with the activity of the executive and other 

decision-makers, including partners?

10.17 The Guidance states that scrutiny members should accept that shortlisting 
items can be difficult; scrutiny committees have finite resources and deciding 
how these are best allocated is tough.  Having identified items members can 
then consider whether it be best to address the matter via an item on an 
agenda, holding a special meeting or by creating a specific task and finish 
working group.

Evidence Sessions

10.18 Good preparation is a vital part of conducting effective evidence sessions.  
Members should have a clear idea of what the committee hopes to get out of 
each session and appreciate that success will depend on their ability to work 
together on the day. Scrutiny members may wish to consider their objectives 
for an item and type/order of questions they wish to ask.  Following each 
session members should consider their recommendations taking into account 
advice offered by officers.  There may also be opportunity for these to be 
sense-checked with the executive to allow for errors to be identified and 
corrected.

Page 46



APPENDIX A

         Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Panels

Overview & Scrutiny Panel Scope

Resources
Membership: Cllrs; Atkins, 

Davies, Fallows, Gledhill, Hart, 
Hawkins, Holmes, Hughes, 

Hulme, Jackson, Jones, Lea, 
Malyon, Plant, Riley, Routledge, 

Shaw, Wilkinson and Yates.

Budget and policy framework, service 
improvement and performance monitoring; 

resource allocation; accessibility of 
services; co-ordination of scrutiny work 

programme; Strategic Alliance and 
efficiencies; overview and scrutiny of all 

functional responsibilities of the portfolios 
covering finance and resources, customer 
services and performance management.

Service Delivery
Membership: Cllrs; Bentley, 

Brady, Bull, Davies, Elkin, 
Emery, Flunder, Hart, Hawkins, 

Herdman, Hoptroff, Page, 
Plimley, Price, Redfern, Roberts, 

Salt, and Ward.

The delivery of council services including 
environment, planning (including 

development and property); housing and 
regeneration; culture (arts, leisure, sport, 

parks, countryside, tourism); overview and 
scrutiny of the portfolio(s) covering 

regeneration, environment, culture, leisure 
and planning, development and property.

Health
Membership: Cllrs; Alcock, 

Atkins, Cawley, Elkin, Fallows, 
Flunder,  Herdman, Holmes, 

Hughes, Hulme, Jones, Lawson,  
McNicol, Price, Redfern, Riley, 
Salt, Swindlehurst, and Wood.

Scrutiny of health service provision in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands (as defined in the 
Code of Joint Working with Staffordshire 

County Council) contributing to the work of 
the Healthy Staffordshire Select 

Committee, which has overall responsibility 
for health scrutiny.

Community
Aberley, Bentley, Health, 

Herdman, Hoptroff, Hughes, 
Johnson, Jones, Martin, Mcnicol,  

Riley, Roberts, Shaw, 
Swindlehurst, Taylor, Ward, 

Wood and Yates.

Democratic and community engagement, 
equalities and diversity, sustainability & 
climate change, community safety, the 

Council’s Community Leadership Scheme, 
locality working, the councillor call for 
action, the Local Strategic Partnership 

(LSP) and other partnerships.  The 
commissioning/delivery of services by 

Staffordshire County Council, parish/town 
councils and the voluntary/third sector.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2019/20

Date Item Contact Officer
12 June 2019 Overview & Scrutiny Briefing A Stokes

Performance Framework 2019/20 & Annual 
Report 2018/19

A Stokes

24 July 2019 4th Quarter 2018/19 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

C Hazeldene

Business Rate Reliefs A Stokes

2 October 2019 1st Quarter 2019/20 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

C Hazeldene

Corporate Plan A Stokes
Overview & Scrutiny Annual Review 2018/19 & 
MHCLG Guidance

L Vernon

27 November 
2019

2nd Quarter 2019/20 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

C Hazeldene

Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes

5 February 
2020

3rd Quarter 2019/20 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

C Hazeldene

2020/21 Budget & Medium term Financial Plan 
2020/21 – 2022/23

A Stokes

25 March 2020

Council Tax Valuation C Hazeldene
Methodology of informing members of local 
developments

A Stokes

Implications of the new statutory guidance on 
Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined 
Authorities
Income Charging Strategy (Including Car 
Parking)
Procurement Strategy (Including engagement 
with local small/medium businesses)
Empty Property Strategy (Including initiatives 
and grants for these to come back into 
occupation)
Facilities Management 
Review of Member Allowances

To be 
confirmed

Councillor Data Sharing Protocol (Information 
available to Councillors, in particular GDPR)

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
CABINET FORWARD PLAN  

 
September – November 2019 

 
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take 
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’  The Plan is 
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is 
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Should you have any questions 
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team 
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613. 
 
A key decision is one defined as: 
 

"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard 
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates." 

 
 OR 
 

"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an 
area comprising two or more District Wards." 

 
Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be 
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the 
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551. 
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions 
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker. 
 
Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public.  However, occasionally, some 
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content 
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal 
information).  This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings 
where this will apply and the reason for this.  
 
Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further 
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private.  This will again state why this is 
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the 
meeting should be open to the public.  This will also include a statement of the 
Council’s response to any such representations. 

 

 

Page 51

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


2 
 

I N D E X 
 

Matter to be decided Date of decision 
to be made 

Page 
No. 

CUSTOMER SERVICES   

Data Protection Policy 8 October 2019 3 

LEADER   
First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 
2019/20 8 October 2019 4 

Corporate Plan 8 October 2019 5 

Wharf Road Strategic Development Site 8 October 2019 6 

Tunstall Road Masterplan 8 October 2019 7 

Acquisition Strategy 8 October 2019 8 

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND PROPERTY   

Biddulph Town Hall 8 October 2019 9 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 52



3 
 

Customer Services 
 

Matter for decision Data Protection Policy 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Hall 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Customer Services 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director (People) 

Public/Private report Public  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



4 
 

Leader 
 

Matter for decision First Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2019/20 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation) 

Public/Private report Public  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



5 
 

Leader 
 

Matter for decision Corporate Plan 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation) 

Public/Private report Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55



6 
 

Leader 
 

Matter for decision Wharf Road Strategic Development Site 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director (Place) 

Public/Private report Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



7 
 

Leader 
 

Matter for decision Tunstall Road Masterplan 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director (Place) 

Public/Private report Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



8 
 

Leader 
 

Matter for decision Acquisition Strategy 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director (Place) 

Public/Private report Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



9 
 

Planning, Development and Property 
 

Matter for decision Biddulph Town Hall 

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council Yes 

Decision maker Cabinet 

Expected date of decision 8 October 2019 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Wain 

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources 

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration 

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation) 

Public/Private report Private - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 Corporate Plan 2019 - 2023
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	9 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2018-2019 & MHCLG Guidance
	Appendix

	10 Work Programme
	SMDC Forward Plan

	12 First Quarter Finance, Procurement and Performance Review 2019/20 - Appendix D

